
NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36

c/o NEIGHBORHOOD COMMISSION  530 SOUTH KING STREET, ROOM 406  HONOLULU, HAWAII 96813
TEL: (808) 768-3710  FAX: (808) 768-3711  INTERNET: http://www.honolulu.gov/nco

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
NANAIKAPONO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Cynthia Rezentes called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. Quorum was established with
six (6) members present. Note – This nine (9) member Board requires five (5) members to establish quorum and to
take official Board action. The Board photo was taken before convening of the meeting.

Board Members Present: Hanalei Aipoalani, Polly “Granny” Grace, Patty Kahanamoku-Teruya, Richard Landford,
Richard Medeiros, and Cynthia Rezentes.

Board Members Absent: Karen Awana and Tercia Ku.

Guests: Alice Greenwood, Major Dan Antolos (U.S. Army Garrison Hawaii 65th Brigade Engineering Battalion),
Representative Jo Jordan, Victor Flint (NAVFAC), Kainoa Texeira, Shirley Landford, Regina Keawe-Paahana,
Lieutenant Arakaki, Sergeant Sanchez, and Sergeant Lemes (Honolulu Police Department), Kauai Hilo (Board of
Water Supply), Glin Nelson (Honolulu Fire Department), R. Westbrooks, Betty Kaahaaina, James Manaku, Sr.,
Councilmember Kymberly Pine, Stacelynn Eli, Gary Nakata (Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s Representative), Senator Maile
Shimabukuro, Representative Andria Tupola, Representative Jo Jordan, and Risé Doi (Neighborhood Commission
Office).

Vacancies: There was one (1) at-large vacancy.

BOARD BUSINESS (PART ONE)

Filling of One (1) At-Large Vacancy: Teruya nominated Alice Greenwood. Medeiros nominated James Manaku, Sr.
Neighborhood assistant Risé Doi verified the residencies. Greenwood and Manaku delivered brief introductions. A
roll call vote was taken. Neither candidate had the necessary number of votes (5) to fill the vacancy,
Greenwood: 4, Manaku: 2, (Greenwood: Aipoalani, Teruya, Landford, Rezentez; Manaku: Grace and Medeiros).
This item was deferred. One (1) at-large vacancy remains.

CITY/STATE MONTHLY REPORTS:

Honolulu Fire Department (HFD) – Captain Glin Nelson reported the following:
 Kapolei Fires: The cause of the Kapolei fires a few months ago is undetermined. There was insufficient

information to determine a cause. The case has been closed for now.
 December 2015 Fire Statistics: There were 11 fires and 86 emergencies.
 Fire Safety Tip: Plug one (1) heat producing appliance into a wall outlet at a time. Major appliances such as

refrigerators, dryers, and stoves should be plugged directly into a wall outlet. Ensure that electrical work is
performed by a licensed electrician.

Honolulu Police Department (HPD): Lieutenant R. Arakaki reported the following: December 2015 Crime Statistics:
There were 30 motor vehicle thefts, 67 burglaries, 188 thefts, and 91 unauthorized entries into motor vehicles
(UEMV). There were 8,612 calls for service in District 8.

Questions, comments and concerns followed:
1. Waianae Boat Harbor: Teruya asked and Lieutenant Arakaki answered that there are occasional calls for

assistance at Waianae Boat Harbor, but some are unsubstantiated.
2. Speeding: Landford noted the need for more police monitoring of speeding and traffic control in Nanakuli and

Waianae. Lieutenant Arakaki noted that there will be more monitoring and issuing of citations as needed.
3. Abandoned Vehicle: Landford asked and Lieutenant Arakaki answered to call HPD to report an abandoned

vehicle or go on the City website.



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 9

4. Calls For Service: Chair Rezentes asked and Lieutenant Arakaki answered that the increase of calls for
service may have been due to the holiday season.

5. Tracks Beach: Teruya noted that there are trucks and cars parked on the sand at Tracks Beach. Lieutenant
Arakaki noted that there will be more enforcement.

6. Emergency Evacuation: Grace raised a concern that traffic in an emergency tsunami evacuation would be
disastrous. Lieutenant Arakaki recommended that in the case of an emergency evacuation, residents should
shelter in place or move towards higher ground. Chair Rezentes noted that Landford will address the concern
in the Transportation Committee.

7. No Left Turn Sign: Resident Kauai Hilo asked and Lieutenant Arakaki answered that the no left turn sign near
Tesoro was installed by the property owner and is not enforceable.

Board of Water Supply: Kauai Hilo reported the following:
 December 2015 Main Breaks: There was one (1) main break at 87-209 Ohiohi Place on December 27, 2015

at 2:35 p.m.
 2016 Water Conservation Calendar and Water Conservation Contests: The poster contest is open to Oahu

students in kindergarten through sixth grade, and the poetry contest is open to Oahu students in seventh
grade through twelfth grade. The theme is “Pure Water – There is No Substitute.” The deadline to enter these
contests is Wednesday, February 24, 2016. Winners will be announced in April 2016 and be featured in the
2017 Water Conservation Calendar.

 Olelo Youth Xchange Video Competition: BWS is sponsoring a category in the Youth Xchange Video
Competition, coordinated by Olelo Community Media. The category is “The Value of Water.” The video
contest is open to students statewide in grades kindergarten through twelfth grade, and the entry deadline is
Wednesday, March 2, 2016. Visit www.theboardofwatersupply.com or call 748-5041 for more information
about the contests.

Questions, comments and concerns followed:
1. Olelo Video Contest Deadline: Aipoalani noted that the Olelo video contest deadline is Monday, February 29,

2016.
2. Main Break: Aipoalani asked if different materials are being considered to retrofit the pipes. Hilo will follow

up. Chair Rezentes requested information about the recent main break at Black Rock.

Military Representative: Major Dan Antolos reported the following:
 Training Advisory: The 25th Infantry Division Lightning Forge will be training from Saturday, January 30, 2016

to Monday, February 8, 2016. There will be an increase in noise from artillery and automatic machine gun
fire as well as military convoys.

 Noise Concerns: To report noise concerns, call 656-3487 or the U.S. Army Garrison-Hawaii Public Affairs at
656-3159, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

 Kolekole Pass: The Army is working with the State Legislature on a memorandum regarding emergency
access to Kolekole Pass for first responders. The memorandum is expected to be completed within 30 to 90
days. The Army will provide updates regarding this issue.

 Syrian Migrants: The Army’s policy is not to speculate whether Syrian migrants will come to Hawaii, however,
any information regarding Syrian migrant relocation will be shared with the community.

Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s Representative: Director of the City Department of Community Services (DCS) Gary Nakata
reported the following: Convex Mirror: There was a previous request for a convex traffic mirror for traffic and
pedestrian safety on Hakimo Road and Waiolu Street. The City Department of Transportation Services (DTS)
completed a study in the area that included a review of the area’s traffic collision history and a site inspection. The
investigation concluded that there is adequate site distance for Waiolu Street motorists to enter Hakimo Road.
Therefore, additional traffic engineering measures are not recommended at this time.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Grants: Teruya asked when the applicants of Office of Economic Development (OED) grants will be notified

of the status of their applications. Nakata will follow up.
2. Contact: Nakata’s phone number is 768-7760 and email is gnakata@honolulu.gov.

Councilmember Kymberly Pine: Councilmember Pine distributed a newsletter and highlighted the following:
 Jet-Ski Lifeguard Crew: Councilmember Pine thanked Senator Maile Shimabukuro and noted that each of

the regions of Oahu have two (2) jet-ski lifeguard crews, but the Ko Olina to Makaha region only has one (1).
Councilmember Pine will be introducing a bill requesting funds for an additional jet-ski lifeguard team.



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 9

 Ceremony: There will be a ceremony for the renaming of Kalanianaole Beach Park held on Saturday, March
26, 2016, Prince Kuhio Day. The community is invited to attend. Councilmember Pine thanked Teruya for
her help with planning the event.

 Community Connections Meeting: Councilmember Pine will be holding a Community Connections meeting
on Thursday, January 21, 2016 in Kapolei. Councilmember Pine will have other Community Connections
meetings in Waianae and in Ewa.

 Job Fair: There will be a job fair at University of Hawaii (UH) West Oahu on Friday, February 26, and
Saturday, February 27, 2016 for the Four Seasons, who will be hiring 700 people. On Saturday, June 25,
2016, there will be another job fair at UH West Oahu for a new shopping mall.

 Resolutions: Councilmember Pine will be introducing a resolution for an audit of HPD when domestic violence
disputes are reported. Councilmember Pine introduced Resolution 15-325 relating to building homeless
shelters where the homeless people are instead of sending the homeless to the Leeward side of Oahu.
Councilmember Pine also introduced Bill 81 relating to replacing speed bumps.

Questions, comments and concerns followed:
1. Community Connections: Aipoalani asked and Councilmember Pine answered that there will be a Waianae

Community Connections meeting that will cover discussions about upcoming projects.
2. Summer Fun: Teruya asked if the free summer fun program will be continued. Councilmember Pine noted

that Mayor Caldwell had put the free summer fun program as an item in the budget last year and
Councilmember Pine expects that the City Council will support that program.

3. Bus Overcrowding: Councilmember Pine will be meeting with DTS to discuss bus overcrowding on Route 93
and Route C. Medeiros suggested that someone from DTS come out at 5:30 a.m. to see the overcrowding.

4. Road: Grace noted the necessity of another road to exit Nanakuli.
5. Bus: Greenwood commented that buses are not using the inlet to pull over and are instead blocking traffic.
6. Satellite City Hall: Community member Sabrina DeReis noted that the Waianae Satellite City Hall looks

abandoned and asked if it was closing. Nakata will follow up.
7. Crosswalks: Manaku commented about the need for crosswalks with activated flashing lights on Farrington

Highway.

BOARD BUSINESS (PART TWO)

Approval of the November 17, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes: Teruya moved and Aipoalani seconded to approve
the November 17, 2015 regular meeting minutes. The minutes were APPROVED as amended, 6-0-0 (Aye:
Aipoalani, Grace, Landford, Medeiros, Rezentes, and Teruya; No: None; Abstain: None). Corrections included the
following:

 Page 5: HPD Report: Questions, comments, concerns followed: 6. Comment: Strike out “Manaku supports
the closure”

Approval of January 19, 2016 Regular Meeting Agenda: Teruya moved and Aipoalani seconded to approve the
January 19, 2016 agenda as circulated. The agenda was APPROVED, 6-0-0 (Aye: Aipoalani, Grace, Landford,
Medeiros, Rezentes, and Teruya; No: None; Abstain: None).

Treasurer’s Report: Chair Rezentes read the financial statement and reported a balance of $202.64. The report was
filed.

Reports of Members Attendance at Other Meetings: Chair Rezentes noted that she and Landford had attended the
December 2015 Waianae Coast Neighborhood Board No. 24 meeting.

RESIDENTS’/COMMUNITY CONCERNS

 Construction: Aipoalani raised a concern that the construction on Farrington Highway does not end at 3:00
p.m. which causes a backup of traffic. Aipoalani commented that perhaps the construction needs to be
completed in a shorter amount of time so that the construction does not impact rush hour traffic. Chair
Rezentes noted that the state elected officials can address the concerns to the State Department of
Transportation (HDOT). Chair Rezentes noted that the construction is supposed to end at 2:30 p.m.

 Traffic: Teruya commented that traffic is getting worse on Farrington Highway, noting that traffic is impacting
the quality of living in Nanakuli. Teruya noted the necessity of an alternative route. Grace agreed.

 Emergency Preparedness: Greenwood urged the community to attend emergency preparedness meetings.



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 9

 Development: Manaku commented that development needs to stop until there is enough infrastructure.

NEW/OLD BUSINESS:

Presentation on Westside Mauka Pavilion Proposal: Teruya reported that there was a Planning and Zoning
Committee meeting held before the regular meeting tonight. There was a full discussion on the farm site located in
Lualualei. The presenters were not registered with the State Department of Consumer and Commerce Affairs (DCCA)
and were applying for a conditional use permit (CUP) permit for eight (8) acres for a proposed farmer’s market in
agriculture zoning. The Planning and Zoning Committee did not support the Westside Mauka Pavilion proposal, noting
that there were questions that remained unanswered and other concerns regarding the presentation.

Support for Resolution: Urging the OahuMPO Policy Board to Raise the Priorities of ORTP Projects 50 and 54 to the
Highest Level and Accelerate the Planning and Construction of Both Projects to Begin Immediately: This resolution
was the recommendation of the Transportation Committee. Landford reported that the start date of the projects have
been postponed until 2035 and noted that the projects should instead begin as soon as possible. Landford noted that
there needs to be a road separate from Farrington Highway to get in and out of Waianae until Waipahu. A copy of
this resolution is attached at the end of this set of minutes.

Discussion followed:

1. Route: Teruya asked and Landford explained that the roads in Kunia can be widened.
2. Waianae Access Road: Teruya commented that that lots of money was spent on a proposed Waianae

access road. Landford noted that there needs to be a meeting to discuss the history of the studies.
3. Project 50: Aipoalani asked about the safety improvements from Maili to Aliinui Drive.
4. Project 54: Aipoalani asked and if Project 54 (Farrington Highway widening from Hakimo Road to Kalaeloa

Boulevard) would affect the construction of the turning lanes for Haleakala Avenue and Nanakuli Avenue.
Aipoalani asked if there was a way for the route not to go through historic preserved land. Aipoalani
expressed support for the resolution. Landford noted that OahuMPO needs to start the project now. Manaku
raised a concern that Project 54 and Project 50 will lead to more development.

5. Project 57: Manaku raised a concern that people will only use the proposed road in cases of emergency.
6. Completion: Community member Al Frenzel noted that the projects need to be done. Frenzel noted that

zoning, not the widening of roads, will determine how many people will live in the Leeward Coast. Frenzel
noted that Project 57 will not happen since dropping off the priority list. Greenwood noted the importance of
having a road for emergency evacuation.

7. Funding: Aipoalani noted that funding is always a concern, and commented that development in Ewa affects
the Waianae Coast. Aipoalani suggested asking the City Council for funding for these projects to alleviate
traffic in the Waianae Coast.

The resolution urging the OahuMPO Policy Board to raise the priorities of ORTP Projects 50 (Farrington
Highway, Safety Improvements, Makua Valley to Aliinui Drive) and 54 (to the highest level and accelerate the
planning and construction of both projects to begin immediately was ADOPTED UNANIMOUSLY, 6-0-0 (Aye:
Aipoalani, Grace, Landford, Medeiros, Rezentes, and Teruya; No: None; Abstain: None).

Support for Resolution: Urging all Military Services to Route Traffic Accessing Makua Valley to Use Kolekole Road
to Paakea Road or Mailiili Road Before Accessing Farrington Highway: Landford explained that the resolution is
asking the military convoys and vehicles coming from Schofield to access Makua Valley for training use Kolekole
Road instead of Farrington Highway. Landford noted that the Transportation Committee has tried to think of
alternatives other than waiting for a memorandum of agreement.

Discussion followed:

1. Support: Grace expressed support for the resolution.
2. Kolekole Road: Teruya commented that the community should be able to use Kolekole Road without military

permission. Teruya noted that the military should use funding to repair Kolekole Road. Teruya expressed
support for the resolution. Manaku expressed support for using Kolekole Road. Frenzel noted that taxpayers
paid for the road and the road needs to be fixed and maintained. Frenzel raised a concern that the U.S. Navy
does not intend to put funding into maintaining the road. Frenzel commented that the resolution is not anti-
military and the intent is to decrease traffic on Farrington Highway and to get Kolekole Road repaired.

3. Safety: Aipoalani asked if the path way to Kolekole Road is safe to use. Landford answered that the first exit
on Kolekole Road is near Mailiili Road. The second exit is near a power plant gate. The third exit is near
Lualualei Naval Road. Landford noted that the City could widen Kolekole Road near Mailiili Road. Landford



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 9

also noted that Paakea Road needs to be widened and striped. Aipoalani noted that funding should be used
to fix those roads so that Kolekole Road is safe to use.

4. History: Manaku noted that the access route was dedicated in 1935 as an emergency access road, and that
he opposes live fire in Makua Valley. Manaku expressed support of the military using a different route.
Greenwood noted that an access road near Waianae Valley Road was given back to the State Department
of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL).

5. Wording: Chair Rezentes raised a concern that the wording of the resolution states “urging all military
services to route traffic accessing Makua Valley” and suggested the wording be more specific, noting that
military vehicles coming from Kaneohe would have to go to H3, then to H2 to get to Schofield and go through
Kolekole Road. Landford noted the resolution was directed towards military vehicles coming from Schofield.
Chair Rezentes asked and Landford clarified that the resolution was directed towards military vehicles coming
from Schofield or Wheeler and the intent was to improve Kolekole Road. Chair Rezentes raised a concern
that the resolution does not clarify which military services or military vehicles should use the access road.
Landford noted that he is not familiar with military records and training, and that the resolution was a result
of the committee’s efforts. Frenzel commented that the intent of the resolution is directed toward all military
services, and clarified that the U.S. Army manages Makua Valley and grants permission for other military
services to use. Frenzel noted that the intent of the resolution is to have all military vehicles accessing Makua
Valley to use Kolekole Road even if they have to travel to Schofield.

6. Traffic: Victor Flynt from Naval Facilities commented that he had spoken with traffic engineers and noted that
military traffic equates to less than one (1) percent. Flynt commented that time should be spent on solutions
that will work now, such as resynchronizing the traffic lights on Haleakala Avenue and getting HPD to help
direct traffic during rush hour. Teruya commented that synchronizing the traffic lights is only a temporary
solution and does not work.

7. Military: Teruya commented that the military should help out the community instead of offering temporary
solutions. Teruya noted that Kolekole Road should be a top priority. Aipoalani agreed and noted that he
hopes that Lualualei Naval Road will be given back to DHHL so that the community can have another access
road in and out of Nanakuli.

8. Committee: Aipoalani noted that he prefers that the resolution go back to the committee for more clarification.
Landford noted that there are some discrepancies and that the resolution will be discussed further.

The resolution urging all military services to route traffic accessing Makua Valley to use Kolekole Road to
Paakea Road or Mailiili Road before accessing Farrington Highway was NOT ADOPTED, 4-2-0 (Aye: Grace,
Teruya, Landford, and Medeiros; No: Aipoalani and Rezentes; Abstain: None).

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Governor David Ige’s Representative – No representative was present; no report was provided.

Senator Maile Shimabukuro – Senator Shimabukuro distributed a newsletter and reported the following:

 Nanakuli Turn Lane: The Nanakuli turn lane project is expected to be completed in 2017. The HDOT
Highways Division has initiated a study to extend the turning lane widening project to Hakimo Road. The
study will be used to justify the utilization of federal funds to move the project forward. With the processes
that are required, it would take five (5) years to deliver the turning lane improvements if the extension to
Hakimo Road can be justified to the federal government.

 Access Road Meeting: There will be a meeting regarding extending the Waianae emergency access road
held on Monday, February 8, 2016 at Ka Waihona o Ka Naauao from 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. There will also
be a meeting on Sunday, January 24, 2016 at Nanakuli Ranch at 11:00 a.m. to look at potential ways to
extend the emergency access road.

 Bills: Senator Shimabukuro referred to the newsletter for a list of legislative priorities for this session. Bill
proposals include the following: Removing the limit of one (1) Section 8 lease per TMK, prohibiting
homeowners associations from executing judicial foreclosures based solely on non-payment of fines which
may be in dispute, allowing for service of process land use violation notices via posting on a searchable
government website if reasonable attempts to serve by mail and in person are unsuccessful, worker’s
compensation treatment plans, and certifying hale-builders who completed courses at Maui Community
College.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 9

1. Foreclosures: Teruya noted that homeowner associations are evicting people for not paying homeowner
association fees, and commented that many of the people being evicted are elderly. Aipoalani commented
that there are similar practices happening to people who rent storage spaces. Senator Shimabukuro will look
into the issue.

2. Farrington Highway: Manaku suggested that Senator Shimabukuro work with Councilmember Pine on
making Farrington Highway safer.

3. Birth and Marriage Certificates: Greenwood asked if the cost of birth and marriage certificates increased to
$12 and how the fees money from birth and marriage certificates are used. Senator Shimabukuro will check.

Representative Andria Tupola – Representative Tupola distributed a newsletter and reported the following:

 Tesoro Left Turn Sign: HDOT will replace the sign prohibiting a left turn by Tesoro.
 Traffic Improvements: The HDOT Traffic Branch has been working with the City administration and State

legislators to develop some operational improvements to improve travel through bottlenecks. HDOT is asking
for more time to look at Nanakuli corridor plans. Representative Tupola asked the public to email Ed Sniffen
at edwin.h.sniffen@hawaii.gov to express that improvements are needed now. There have been delays with
the turn lane project, and alleviation is needed until the project is done.

 Kolekole Road: Representative Tupola met with the U.S. Army, U.S. Navy, and the U.S. Department of
Defense to discuss Kolekole Road. In order for the military to operate, Congressional appropriation and
directive is needed. Representative Tupola will be briefing U.S. Representative Tulsi Gabbard to get funding
for the U.S. Navy to fix Kolekole Road or to turn the road over to the U.S. Army.

 Blocked Lanes: Representative Tupola has been trying to get Campbell Estates, HECO, BWS, HDOT, and
Hawaiian Tel to coordinate so that lanes do not have to be blocked after 2:00 p.m.

 Emergency Preparedness: Representative Tupola recommended to the Army that the Makani Pahili
emergency preparedness exercises are practiced on Kolekole Road.

 Military: Representative Tupola told the Navy that the community would like more input with discussions
regarding areas that need to be upkept.

 Maili Contamination: Many people are worried about the contamination in the Coast Guard property in Maili,
behind Sea Country. The Coast Guard met with the State Department of Health (DOH) and also briefed
Governor Ige. The area is fenced in and will be cleaned up.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:

1. Priorities: Aipoalani noted that funding for Kolekole Road comes down to priorities. Representative Tupola
noted that Senator Daniel Inouye had appropriated money for a bridge that has not been used since the road
was closed. Representative Tupola also noted that it would be beneficial for people working in Schofield who
live in Waianae to open up Kolekole Road.

2. HPD: Teruya raised a concern that HPD has limited staffing and cannot monitor the traffic. Tupola noted that
police officers were used to determine the timing of the lights for the pilot project.

3. U.S. Representative Gabbard: Teruya raised a concern that U.S. Representative Gabbard did not know about
Kolekole Road. Representative Tupola suggested submitting a resolution requesting that someone from U.S.
Representative Gabbard’s office attend the Nanakuli-Maili Neighborhood Board No. 36 meeting. Teruya
noted the importance of the issue of Kolekole Road and that the Congressional delegation needs to be
informed. Frenzel noted that pressure needs to be put onto the Congressional delegation and the U.S. Navy
to open Kolekole Road.

4. Traffic Light Timing: Landford noted that the adjusted timing of the traffic lights works for drivers heading into
Waianae, but is terrible for drivers trying to make a left turn at Haleakala Avenue from Farrington Highway.
Landford commented that HPD officers need training in directing traffic. Representative Tupola noted that
she had suggested to HDOT and DTS that information needs to be disseminated more effectively to the
community. Landford noted that the access roads should be open so that residents can use surface streets.
Representative Tupola asked and Landford answered that the Transportation Committee will look into a
resolution to increase the opening of access roads. Greenwood raised a concern that traffic on Nanakuli
Avenue affects parents who are trying to drop their kids off at school.

5. Cost: Frenzel asked and Representative Tupola answered that $170 million is needed for repair and
maintenance of Kolekole Road.

Aipoalani departed the meeting at 9:33 p.m. Five (5) members were present.

Representative Jo Jordan – Representative Jordan distributed a newsletter and reported the following:



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 9

 Legislative Session: The 2016 Legislative Session begins tomorrow, Wednesday, January 20, 2016.
Representative Jordan has been attending informational briefings since Monday, January 4, 2016. The
briefings are recorded live on Olelo.

 Nelson Case: There are seven (7) beneficiaries from DHHL that sued the State regarding proper operations
and capital improvement project (CIP) money given to DHHL. The Attorney General is moving forward with
an appeal on the case and a reconsideration of the motion. The House of Representatives and the Senate
moved to agree with the Attorney General in the case. Representative Jordan does not agree with the House
leadership nor the Senate regarding the appeal or the reconsideration of the motion. Governor Ige is asking
for $9.6 million for the DHHL budget. Representative Jordan encouraged the public to call Governor Ige’s
office and the Finance (FIN) and Ways and Means (WAM) chairs, Representative Sylvia Luke and Senator
Jill Tokuda.

 Lualualei Flood Mitigation: Gary Kuber from Group 70 announced there will be a community workshop
regarding the Lualualei flood mitigation study on Tuesday, January 26, 2016 at the Kamehameha Schools
Community Learning Center at Maili from 7:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed: DHHL: Teruya asked for updates regarding the DHHL case.

COMMITTEE REPORTS: There were no committee reports. The Agriculture Committee will be meeting on Thursday,
January 21, 2016, at Maili Community Park from 7:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. The Transportation Committee will be meeting
on Thursday, January 21, 2016, at Maili Community Park from 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. The Housing Committee will
be meeting on Thursday, January 28, 2016, at Maili Community Park at 7:00 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:
 Correspondence: There was a CUP major hearing for PVT Land Company on Wednesday, January 6, 2016.

The Hawaii Agriculture Resource Center wants to install a solar hub of utilities and a 500 megawatt
photovoltaic (PV) system on the existing road of their property. City Council 2016 calendars are available.

 Next Regular Board Meeting: The next Nanakuli-Maili Neighborhood Board No. 36 regular meeting will be
held on Tuesday, February 16, 2016 at the Nanaikapono Elementary School Cafeteria.

 Lualualei Flood Mitigation: There will be a community workshop regarding the Lualualei flood mitigation study
on Tuesday, January 26, 2016 at the Kamehameha Schools Community Learning Center at Maili from 7:00
p.m. to 8:30 p.m.

 Waianae Coast Community Foundation: Teruya announced that the Waianae Coast Community Foundation
took over the Toys For Tots program and serviced over 23,640 needy families, churches, and service
providers during the holiday season. The foundation also applied for an OED grant to bring back Waianae
Sunset on the Beach at Maili Beach Park.

ADJOURNMENT: Teruya moved and Medeiros seconded to adjourn the meeting. The motion was ADOPTED
UNANIMOUSLY, 5-0-0 (Aye: Grace, Landford, Medeiros, Rezentes, and Teruya; No: None; Abstain: None). The
meeting was adjourned at 9:46 p.m.

Submitted by: Risé Doi, Public Relations Assistant
Reviewed by: Sam Wolff, Neighborhood Assistant
Final Review by: Cynthia Rezentes, Chair



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 8 OF 9

RESOLUTION

URGING THE OahuMPO POLICY BOARD TO RAISE THE PRIORITIES OF ORTP
PROJECTS 50 AND 54 TO THE HIGHEST LEVEL AND ACCELERATE THE
PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION OF BOTH PROJECTS TO BEGIN
IMMEDIATELY.

WHEREAS, traffic along the leeward coast has become increasingly heavy over
recent years, over-burdening the finite capacity of Farrington Highway; and

WHEREAS, traffic on Farrington Highway between Kalaeloa Boulevard (Kapolei)
and Lualualei Naval Road (Nanakuli) intersection has reached critical high usage levels,
causing extreme traffic congestion and long delays; and

WHEREAS, Project 54 of the Oahu Regional Transportation Plan 2035 (ORTP
2035) would provide immediate relief for traffic congestion between Kalaeloa Blvd to
Hakimo Road. Project 54 title: Farrington Highway, Widening, Hakimo Road to
Kalaeloa Boulevard; Project 54 Description: Widen Farrington Highway from four to six
lanes, from Hakimo Road to Kalaeloa Boulevard, including intersection of Lualualei
Naval Road. Estimated Cost of $233 Million. Category of Congestion Mitigation
Projects – 2021-2035. Project 54 was previously designated as Project 39 of ORTP
2030; and

WHEREAS, Project 50 of the ORTP 2035 would provide immediate relief for
traffic congestion and highway safety concerns between Makua Valley Road to Aliinui
Drive. Project 50 title: Farrington Highway, Safety Improvements, Makua Valley Road
to Aliinui Drive; Project 50 Description: Construct safety improvements on Farrington
Highway along the Waianae Coast, from Makua Valley Road (Kaena Point) to Aliinui
Drive (Kahe Point). This project includes realignment around Makaha Beach Park,
between Makau Street and Water Street.. Estimated Cost of $209 Million. Category of
Safety and Operational Improvement Projects – 2021-2035. Project 50 was previously
designated as Project 37 of ORTP 2030; and

WHEREAS, Project 57 of the ORTP 2030 would have provided immediate relief
for traffic congestion and highway safety concerns for the Leeward Coast but was
somehow cancelled and not carried over to ORTP 2035. Project 57 title: Waianae,
Second Access, Farrington Highway to Kunia Road; Project 57 Description: Construct
a new 2-lane second access road to Waianae from Farrington Highway in the vicinity of
Maili, over the Waianae Mountain Range, to Kunia Road. Estimated Cost of $423
Million. Category of Second Access Projects – 2016-2030; and
WHEREAS, traffic congestion and safety concerns are only going to grow worse
on the Leeward Coast as more and more people relocate to the more beautiful and
more economically affordable Leeward communities on Oahu; and

WHEREAS, no other relief is forecasted that will alleviate or mitigate traffic
congestion and safety concerns for residents on the Leeward Coast; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Nanakuli-Maili Community requests the Oahu
Metropolitan Planning Organization (OahuMPO) Policy Board to raise the priority of



NANAKULI-MAILI NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 36 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2016
DRAFT-REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 9 OF 9

ORTP Projects 50 and 54 to the highest level and accelerate the planning and
construction of both projects to begin immediately.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that copies of this Resolution be transmitted to: All
members of the OahuMPO Policy Board (list attached); the Executive Director of the
OahuMPO; the Governor, State of Hawaii; the Mayor, City and County of Honolulu; the
State Senator, State House Representative and City and County Council
Representative for the Nanakuli-Maili Community.

INTRODUCTION: December 1, 2015

SUBMITTED BY: Richard Landford
Cynthia Rezentes
December 01, 2015
Nanakuli-Maili Neighborhood Board, Chair

This resolution was adopted at the January 19, 2016 Nanakuli-Maili Neighborhood Board No. 36
regular meeting, 6-0-0 (Aye: Aipoalani, Grace, Landford, Medeiros, Rezentes, and Teruya; No:
None; Abstain: None).


